

FINAL Minutes

Meeting:Transportation CommissionTime:Wednesday, September 21, 2022 at 5:30 P.M.Place:Virtual, Zoom

Join by computer, click on the following link:

https://zoom.us/join or https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87316891624?pwd=ZEJBMml3VWZSOTd1cjE5ZjNGT0VoUT09

Join by Phone: (253) 215-8782 Meeting ID: 873 1689 1624

Passcode: 747000

I. Call to Order

Co-Chair Nyland called the meeting to order at 5:31 PM

II. Swearing in of New Commissioners

CM Korbuszewski, CM Goble, and CM Wrenn took their oath as administered by City Clerk Doris Sorum.

III. Roll Call and Introductions

a) Icebreaker: In honor of the Week Without Driving, share a memorable transportation-related experience that did not involve a car. Commissioners introduced themselves and shared their response to the icebreaker.

IV. Approval of Minutes (August 17, 2022)

CM Gardner moved to approved the minutes and Co-Chair Morris seconded the motion. The minutes were approved as presented.

V. Public Comment on Agenda Topics

No members of the public provided comments.

VI. Business Items

a) Parking System Update and Curb Management (Information and Comment) – Rachel Barra, Parking Services Rachel Barra, Management Analyst and liaison to the Parking Technical Advisory Group (PTAG), provided updates on the off-street, on-street, enforcement, and parking management. Rachel explained that in residential areas, there has been a shift in parking dynamics with people working from home and increasing weekday-daytime occupancies, 311 requests for life safety violations (blocking crosswalks/sidewalks), ADA parking stalls, and requests for Residential Parking Zones. Rachel shared that enforcement activity essentially stopped during the pandemic except for life-safety issues. They are rolling out with a softer approach with warnings and slowly bringing back parking officers as need and funding allow.

Rachel provided an overview of the 2019 Parking Assessment Study, which focuses in downtown. The City will be conducting another assessment in 23-24. Rachel also shared data regarding off-street parking occupancy between 2019-2022 that is still currently lower than early 2019 with a 20% occupancy. CM Casas recognized that there may be areas where people are parking on planting strips and does not appear to be captured in the study. He also noted that cars are parking illegally and do impact other types of mobility. CM Goble also shared that abandoned or cars being worked on impact neighborhood parking. He also asked if





the City owns the garages being paid for and where the revenues go. Rachel explained that the City does own the facility and revenues go to paying down the bond, but PTAG is exploring opportunities to reuse or re-purpose off-street facilities to address other needs. CM Wrenn asked how parking management is being planned to address the expansion of Link. Rachel shared that there hasn't been planning efforts, but the intent is to watch how parking may impact Link usage and mode shift. CM Korbuszewski noticed that large vehicles block sidewalks when parked in angle parking. He also noted that the sale of RVs and trailers has increased, which means they are parked on-street, and asked why they are not tagged as no violation. Rachel noted that if it moves every 7 days and is licensed, it is in compliance with code. If someone is living in the RV, it is deferred to Code Compliance.

Rachel also shared the PTAG work plan for the remainder of 2022, which includes developing a curb management framework. The pandemic and new mobility tools have changed how curb space/on-street parking may be needed. They intend to have a PTAG Framework Action Plan completed in December. Commissioners provided feedback on specific conflicts in the curb space within context of curb management. Feedback included short term parking needs (on-demand food/carshare, deliveries/Amazon), safety of parking maneuvers/conflicts with people pulling in/out of stalls, and parklets space. Commissioners also provided feedback on data collection needs, including availability of parking spaces and understanding how businesses use curb space. They also shared thoughts on parking management success/improvements, including increased visibility at intersections and transit oriented policy development with parking. CM Casas shared concerns about cars parked on planting strips and would like to further discuss.

Pacific Avenue Sub-Area Plan (Information and Comment) – Wesley Rhodes, Comprehensive Planning b) Wesley Rhodes, Senior Planner with Planning & Development Services, provided an overview of Picture Pac Ave, which includes the Pacific Avenue corridor between I-5 and south city limits. This is the first time the City has conducted a Subarea Plan in an area that is not required by State Law. The purpose is to support and leverage investments from the Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) system. In addition to the Subarea Plan, this project will include a planned action Environmental Impact Statement and planned Action Ordinance to support streamlined permitting and growth predictability. Pierce Transit is a partner on this project; however, the plan is not looking at the actual design of BRT, which is a separate process. CM Morris asked for clarification of the northern edge of BRT. Wesley shared the route extends north to Tacoma Dome Station then through downtown to S 9th Street. The major elements include community visioning, zoning & urban design, transportation & connectivity, economic development, housing, and environment & sustainability with equity embedded in each element. Transportation & Connectivity will focus on equitable Transit Oriented Development (TOD), transit/bicycle/pedestrian connections, traffic & air quality, streetscape, curb management strategies, and shared infrastructure & investment priorities. Carrie shared that Pacific Avenue is a shown as a High Risk Corridor in the Vision Zero Action Plan. Wesley explained that community engagement includes a soft launch in Summer 2022, visioning in Fall/Winter '22/'23, draft plan review Summer/Fall '23, and final plan adoption to be determined.

CM Korbuszewski asked how this project will accommodate bicycle access. Wesley shared that the plan will include that analysis. He recognizes there is a long range vision for bicycles and this may be an opportunity to comment on that vision. Carrie shared that the Transportation Master Plan (TMP) calls for a bike boulevard on A Street. CM Gardner explained that the South End Neighborhood Council (SENC) has been working with UW Tacoma on mapping and planning. He asked if there will be any consideration for incorporation with the Pierce County Comprehensive Planning effort. Wesley also shared that there will be an advisory committee



that Commissioners are invited to participated in. He has connected with SENC and intends to continue engaging with them, and has been working with Pierce County on future coordination regarding the two plans. CM Goble suggested having a clear roadmap of what folks are contributing too and providing information in an easily digestible way. CM Casas asked staff to clarify or ensure that folks understand what visioning for this corridor means. It appears that the community will be commenting on a defined or draft vision to comment on versus developing it. One of his goals recognizes that the City brings forth a vision that folks comment on and that a best practice would be to co-develop of a vision at the beginning. Wesley recognizes that determine the overarching goals and values that would feed into the growth scenarios and then bring that back to the community for further development.

Co-Chair Nyland recommends rezoning beyond a single block off Pacific Avenue and looking at more of the 15-minute walkshed. CM Serad provided comments that the BRT project will transform how SR7 is shaped and is used. The changes will require mitigation in the project area. There will be unanticipated positive and negative outcomes because of the \$250-million improvements. In terms of transportation planning, and well in advance of this transformation, how can the commission properly provide guidance on the development of this corridor? Outside of key zoning amendments, might this sub-area plan be benefitted by waiting for the completion of BRT in 2027? What can this sub-area plan accomplish that organic, incremental growth cannot, especially when considering existing city plans, regulations, and the ongoing zoning reforms in the area? Wesley shared that when a Subarea Plan works, it approves changes to both the zoning map and zoning code, which may include upzoning to support transit investments. It also helps to identify impacts (parks, transportation) and mitigation that are beneficial for future funding, streamlining development improvements and permitting, and ensuring development supports other priorities (housing affordability, environmental).

VII. Other Business/Updates

- a) Transit Oriented Development Advisory Group (Matt Stevens, Erin Anderson) TODAG did not meet.
- b) Bus Rapid Transit Citizens Committee (Richard Gardner) CM Gardner shared a groundbreaking is scheduled for October 3, 2022 in Spanaway.
- c) Bicycle Pedestrian Technical Advisory Group (Erin Anderson/need another representative) Carrie shared that BPTAG discussed Leading Pedestrian Intervals and No Right Turn on Red.

VIII. Staff Reports

- a) Staff Updates
 - i) Transportation Commission recruitment update The City is advertising for District 5.
 - ii) Resuming in-person/hybrid In-person hybrid meetings will return in October.
- b) Status of Grant Applications and Major Capital Projects No updates
- c) Upcoming Public Meetings and Events
 - i) October is Walk to School Month
 - ii) Proctor Neighborhood Plan Kick-Off: Sept. 29

IX. Commissioner Comments

CM Gardner shared that is happy to provide information to new Commissioners regarding the background and current status of Bus Rapid Transit Route 1.

The City of Tacoma does not discriminate on the basis of disability in any of its programs, activities, or services. To request this information in an alternative format or to request a reasonable accommodation, please contact the Carrie Wilhelme at (253) 591-5560 (voice) or TTY-711.



X. Public Comment

Carrie recapped written comments regarding arterial paving.

Larry Leveen provided comments regarding Forever Green Trails, Walk & Roll Pierce County Coalition, Pierce County Transportation Advisory Commission, and the upcoming Pierce County Trails Day.

XI. Adjourn

The meeting was adjourned at 7:54 PM.

The City of Tacoma does not discriminate on the basis of disability in any of its programs, activities, or services. To request this information in an alternative format or to request a reasonable accommodation, please contact the Carrie Wilhelme at (253) 591-5560 (voice) or TTY-711.



List of Groups to Attend or Follow

- Neighborhood Councils
- Neighborhood Business Districts
- Hilltop Action Coalition
- Tacoma Dome Business District
- Schuster Parkway/Ruston Way Stakeholder Committee
- WSDOT SR167 Bike/Ped Stakeholder Group
- Sound Transit TDLE
- Tideflats Subarea Plan
- Planning Commission
- Parking Technical Advisory Group
- Sustainable Tacoma Commission

2021 Infrastructure, Planning, and Sustainability Committee Recommendations

- Affordable housing and access
- Bike boulevards Increase facilities, wayfinding, and use
- Pierce Transit Support higher frequency and future increases
- Vision Zero Support development and implementation
- Neighborhood Greenways Include in TMP and focus on traffic calming elements
- Bike Friendly City Strive for silver status and prioritize network of protected bike facilities



If you have difficulty understanding English, you may, free of charge, request language assistance services for this Department information by calling (253) 591-5560, or email us at: cwilhelme@cityoftacoma.org.

- Aviso a personas con dominio limitado del idioma inglés: Si a usted se le dificulta entender el inglés, puede solicitar servicios de ayuda con el idioma, de forma gratuita, con respecto a ésta información, llamando al (253) 591-5560, o enviando un mensaje de correo electrónico a: cwilhelme@cityoftacoma.org.
- Thông báo dành cho những người có khả năng Anh ngữ hạn chế: Nếu quý vị gặp khó khăn trong việc hiểu Anh ngữ thì quý vị có thể yêu cầu các dịch vụ hỗ trợ ngôn ngữ cho các tin tức của Bộ dành cho công chúng. Các dịch vụ hỗ trợ ngôn ngữ này đều miễn phí. Nếu quý vị muốn biết thêm chi tiết về các dịch vụ phiên dịch hay thông dịch, xin vui lòng gọi số (253) 591-5560, hoặc email: cwilhelme@cityoftacoma.org.
- 영어 미숙자를 위한 공고: 영어를 이해하는 데 어려움이 있으신 경우, 교육부 정보 센 터에 일반인 대상 언어 지원 서비스를 요청하실 수 있습니다. 이러한 언어 지원 서비스 는 무료로 제공됩니다. 통역이나 번역 서비스에 대해 자세한 정보가 필요하신 경우, 전 화번호 (253) 591-5560 또는 이메일주소 cwilhelme@cityoftacoma.org. 으로 연락하시기 바랍니다.
- Paunawa sa mga Taong Limitado ang Kaalaman sa English: Kung nahihirapan kayong makaintindi ng English, maaari kayong humingi ng tulong ukol dito sa inpormasyon ng Kagawaran mula sa nagbibigay ng serbisyo na pagtulong kaugnay ng wika. Ang serbisyo na pagtulong kaugnay ng wika ay libre. Kung kailangan ninyo ng dagdag na impormasyon tungkol sa mga serbisyo kaugnay ng pagpapaliwanag o pagsasalin, mangyari lamang tumawag sa (253) 591-5560, o mag-email sa: cwilhelme@cityoftacoma.org.
- Уведомление для лиц с ограниченным знанием английского языка: Если вы испытываете трудности в понимании английского языка, вы можете попросить, чтобы вам предоставили перевод информации, которую Министерство Образования доводит до всеобщего сведения. Этот перевод предоставляется бесплатно. Если вы хотите получить более подробную информацию об услугах устного и письменного перевода, звоните по телефону (253) 591-5560, или отправьте сообщение по адресу: cwilhelme@cityoftacoma.org.